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The Sanford Wilson House is located in the tiny community of Fredonia in southeastern
Montgomery County, between the 0ld and New Ashland City highways and approximately

1,500 feet north-northwegt of the intersection of the 0ld Ashland Highway and the

0ld Clarksville Pike. Sanford Wilson, a prosperous planter, ahd the house built in

ca. 1840 or earlier; three generations of Wilson resided there until the property changed
hands in the late nineteenth century (ca. 1899).

The two-story, brick, Federal style house has an ell floor plan and sixteen-inch
thick walls. The main elevation, which is laid in Flemish bond and divided into
five bays, faces west toward the Cumberland River, some three miles away; the boxed
cornice has built-in gutters and the frieze is ornamented with large and small
brackets, and the elongated pairs of brackets further delineate the bays. The house
was built on a brick foundation and has a crawl space, rather than a cellar. Com-
position material now covers the medium gable roof but the original was probably wood
shingles. The windows have Flemish bond radiating voissoir lintels and plain
slipsills; the two-over—-two windows are probably ca. 1895 replacements. The main
entrance, architrave, with its headlights, sidelights, and panels, and windowed
paneled door, is centered on the west elevation. An open, flat, metal-roof porch
with four columns and two pilasters was removed in 1976. Although some hardware
remains, the shutters were probably eliminated in ca. 1899.

The north and south elevations were laid in common bond and neither has any apertures.
The former has an external and the latter an internal chimney. Both elevations have
boxed cormices with returns and these are decorated with paired brackets. The east
elevation resembles the main facade, except that the brick pattern is common bond, and
the brackets are absent. The second-story center window has six-over-nine light
pattern and possibly contains an original sash. S :

The two-story, brick ell is attached to the southern end of the east wall and
appears contemporaneous to the main section. It was laid in common bond, has a
brick foundation, a standing seam metal roof with a centrally located brick chimney
stack, and a simple boxed cornice. The porch attached to the north side of the ell
was enclosed, weatherboarded, and supplied with two doors in ca. 1895. The east
wall which is whitewashed, has two doors and traces of a staircase to the second-
floor entrance remain visible. A variety of window sizes and light patterns are
found in the ell.

In the late nineteenth or the early years of this century the building was painted
and penciled, the Victorian front porch and cornice trim added, nearly all of the
sashes replaced, and the ell porch enclosed. There were also considerable interior
alterations as well.

The main section is one-room deep, and two sixteen-foot-square rooms flank the central
ahll. Small Victorian mantles replaced the original mantles and the fireplace
openings were reduced in size. An enclosed two-run, quarter turn staircase with
winders is located in the southeast corner of the central hall; a second staircase,
found in the southwest corner of the western ell room has a similar configuration.
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A considerable portion of the original woodwork, doors, floors, and plaster remains.
A bathroom was added in recent months in the second floor hall, and a new attic
staircase has replaced the original. The numbered rafters were joined with trunnels,
and there is no ridge pole. The majority of the visible timbering is either hand-
sawn or hewn and a significant portion of it is poplar.

Thirty or forty feet east of the house are the ruins of a log smokehouse. This
building was built on stone pilings and has squared logs joined with half dovetail
notching. The roof has collapsed and its configuration cannot be determined. North-
northwest of the Wilson House is a vacant single story, windowless brick T-shaped
building which formerly housed telephone equipment but is vacant now. This structure
was probably built in the 1950s.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sanford Wilson House is an excellent example of the Federal style brick residence
which was bmilt in Tennessee during the first half of the nineteenth century. Houses
with facade walls laid in the Flemish bond pattern were rarely built in Tennessee after
ca. 1840. This, combined with the absence of a ridge pole, the use of trunnels, and
the presence of hewn or hand-sawn timbers, indicates that the house was very likely
constructed in 1840 or earlier. 'The Wilson House is the only known residence of this
architectural style loested between Clarksville and Nashville, and there is not another
like it in southeastern Montgomery County.

The majority of the land in this section of the county was controlled by the prominent
Wilson family, which was among the most prosperous planter families in the entire county.
In 1890 the Wilsons owned nearly 3,050 acres. Snaford Wilson acquired several thousand
acres in January 1812. When he died two years later, he bequeathed his house, land,
slaves, and personalty to his son Sanford (ca. 1789-1848). It is believed that the
younger Wilson built the Sanford Wilson House prior to 1840. After his death, his
holdings were willed to his son Samuel H. R. (1813-1871). The property then passed

to Samuel H. R.'s son Samuel E. Wilson (1860-1925) who disposed of the house and land

in the 1890s. Three generations of Wilsons lived in this house. Since then twelve
owners have held title to the property.

Except for some minor damage to the area around a crawl space opening in the ell, the
building appears to be structurally sound. Most of the original fabric. remains. The
present owners have recently acquired the house, and it is their intention to rehabilitate
and live in it. It is now used as rental property.
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